
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given by the Board of Trustees that Granger-Hunter Improvement District will 
hold a Board Meeting at 3:00 p.m. on Tuesday, September 21, 2021, at its main office located at 2888 
South 3600 West, West Valley City, Utah. Trustees and members of the public are able to attend this 

meeting in person or electronically through www.ghid.org. 
 

Agenda   
A. GENERAL 

1. Call to order – Welcome – Report those present for the record 
2. Public Comments 
3. Consider approval of the August 24, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 
4. Discuss potential conflicts of interest 

 
B. OUR TEAM 

                    1.   Water and Sewer Master Plans – Further Revenue and Rate Discussions 
a. Property Tax Calculation and Discussion 
b. Funding Scenarios – Alternatives to Meet Revenue Needs 
c. Rate Design Considerations 

 
C. OUR COMMUNITY 

1. Jordan Valley Water Conservancy District review 
2. Central Valley Water Reclamation Facility review 
3. Legislative Update - ARPA 
4. Consider adoption of Resolution No. 09-21-21 Intent to Cancel the 2021 Election of Two 

Trustee Seats to the Board of the Granger-Hunter Improvement District 
 

D. OUR OPERATIONS 
1. Review & discuss Financial Report for August 2021 
2. Review & discuss Paid Invoice Report for August 2021 
3. Water maintenance update 
4. Wastewater maintenance update 
5. Water supply review 
6. Capital Projects update 
7. Consider an award of a Construction Contract to Broderick & Henderson Construction, LLC 

in the amount of $1,410,500.00 for the 20G: Building B Addition and Remodel Project. 
8. Engineering Department update 

 
E. BOARD MEMBERS INPUT, REPORTS, FOLLOW-UP ITEMS OR QUESTIONS 

 
F. CALENDAR 

1.  The next board meeting will be October 19, 2021 
 



Granger-Hunter Improvement District Board of Trustees Meeting (Unapproved and Subject to Change) 

 

 

1 

                                                MINUTES OF THE 
GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

BOARD MEETING  
 

The Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Granger-Hunter Improvement District (GHID) was held 
Tuesday, August 24, 2021, at 3:00 P.M. at the District office located at 2888 S. 3600 W., West Valley City, 
Utah. 
 
This meeting was conducted electronically in accordance with the Utah Open and Public Meetings Act 
(Utah Code Ann. (1953) §§ 52-4-1 et seq.) and Chapter 7.12 of the Administrative Policy and Procedures 
Manual (“Electronic Meetings”). 

 
Trustees Present: 
Debra Armstrong             Chair   
Corey Rushton              Trustee  
Roger Nordgren              Trustee  
 
Staff Members Present: 
Jason Helm             General Manager 
Todd Marti             Assistant General Manager/District Engineer 
Troy Stout             Assistant General Manager/Chief Operating Officer 
Michelle Ketchum                       Director of Administration 
Dustin Martindale            Director of Water Systems - Excused 
Ricky Necaise             Director of Wastewater  
Victor Narteh              Director of Engineering 
Justin Gallegos            Director of Information Technology - Excused 
Austin Ballard             Controller 
Dakota Cambruzzi            Human Resource Manager 
Kristy Johnson            Executive Assistant 
Brent Rose             Legal Counsel – Clyde Snow & Sessions PC – Arrived at 3:10 pm/Left 5:30 pm 
 
Guests: 
Adam Spackman System Administrator, GHID  
Keith Larson Project Manager, Bowen, Collins & Associate – Left meeting following presentation 
Marie Owens AE2S  
Steve Starr Water Systems Division Manager, GHID – Electronically 
Idanely Orosco Customer Service, GHID - Electronically 
Shawn Ellis Water Systems Division Manager, GHID – Electronically 
Linda Townes Cook Jordan Valley Water Conservancy District – Electronically 
William Snellmer Member of the Community - Electronically 
 
 
A copy of the exhibits referred to in these minutes is attached and incorporated by this reference. The 
exhibits are also included in the official minute books maintained by Granger-Hunter Improvement 
District.   
                



Granger-Hunter Improvement District Board of Trustees Meeting (Unapproved and Subject to Change) 

 

 

2 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
 

Public Comments 
 

Approval of the 
July 20, 2021  

Board Meeting Minutes 
 
      
 
 

Conflicts of interest 
 

OUR TEAM 
Master Plan Update – 

Revenue Needs Analysis 
and Property Taxes and 

Rates Discussion 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2021 Strategic Plan 
Initiatives Update 

 
 
 
 
 
 

OUR COMMUNITY 
Jordan Valley Water 
Conservancy District 

Review 
 

Draft Drought 
Contingency Plan 

Discussion 
 
 
 
 

 At 3:00 P.M. Debra Armstrong called the meeting to order and recognized all 
those present.   
 
There were none. 
 
A motion to approve the Board Meeting Minutes from July 20, 2021, was made 
by Roger Nordgren, followed by a second from Debra Armstrong.  
 
The motion passed as follows; 
 
Armstrong – aye                     Rushton – aye                Nordgren – aye 
 
There were none. 
 
Keith Larson, the project manager for the rate study from Bowen, Collins & 
Associates, presented the master plan update, revenue needs analysis and 
property taxes and rates plan for GHID.  A discussion took place regarding 
property taxes and rates.  Corey Rushton asked Austin Ballard to analyze the 
Public Good percentage to make sure that property taxes are adequately funding 
those amounts. Mr. Larson recommended the Board consider a statement of 
intent to raise the amount of property tax before the deadline of October 19, 2021.  
Some further property tax analysis will be done by District staff and reported on 
at the September 21, 2021 Board Meeting.  The Board will file a statement of 
intent to raise the amount of property tax with the understanding that the increase 
will be based on the analysis results. The Board discussed a tax increase policy 
moving forward. – See Master Plan Update, Revenue Needs Analysis: Property 
Taxes and Rates report attached to these minutes for details. 
 
Jason Helm presented the 2021 Strategic Plan Initiatives update.  Troy Stout 
discussed the Water Loss Task Force Plan.  Corey Rushton discussed the process 
for reallocation of budget line items, such as the election funds, that will no 
longer be used.  In an effort of transparency with the General Public, Mr. Rushton 
asked that larger line items that are redistributed, be included in the Board 
financial report. – See 2021 Strategic Initiatives Quarterly Objective 
Performance report attached to these minutes for details. 
 
Mr. Helm presented the August Jordan Valley Water Conservancy District 
update and some of the impacts of water conservation on water sales and revenue. 
– See Jordan Valley Water Conservancy District Update attached to these 
minutes for details. 
 
Mr. Helm and Todd Marti discussed the draft drought contingency plan. The 
Board supports the draft plan with further support from West Valley City 
regarding water efficiency standards. – See Draft Drought Contingency Plan 
attached to these minutes for details.  
 
 
 



Granger-Hunter Improvement District Board of Trustees Meeting (Unapproved and Subject to Change) 

 

 

3 

BREAK 
 

Central Valley Water 
Reclamation Facility 

Review 
 

West Valley City Water 
Efficiency Standard 

Coordination 
 
 
 

OUR OPERATIONS 
Review & Discuss 

Financial Report for 
July 2021 

 
Review & Discuss Paid 

Invoice Report for  
July 2021  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Water Maintenance 
Update 

 
Consider Approval for 
the Purchase of Three 
Channel Grinders to 

JWC Environmental for 
Armstrong and Decker 

Main Pump Stations 
 
 
 

A short break began at 5:30 p.m. The Board Meeting resumed at 5:36 p.m. 
 
Mr. Helm presented the August Central Valley Water Reclamation update. – See 
Central Valley Water Reclamation Update attached to these minutes for details. 
 
 
Mr. Helm discussed the West Valley City Water Efficiency Standard 
coordination efforts.  Mr. Helm explained that the District sent a letter to West 
Valley City and reported some response from the City. – See the Support of 
Existing and Future West Valley City Sustainable Practices and Programs Letter 
attached to these minutes for details.  
 
Austin Ballard summarized the July Financial Report. Mr. Ballard mentioned 
water sales have increased over the last month however, estimations still show 
revenue shortages by the end of the year. Mr. Ballard discussed some ways to 
cover those shortages. 
  
Mr. Ballard discussed the July check report. The July check report totaled 
$4,131,120.53 coming from five categories; Jordan Valley (34%), infrastructure 
(26%), Central Valley (22%), taxes, payroll and benefits (8%), and other (10%).   
 
Mr. Ballard discussed the current candidate submissions for the upcoming 
election and explained that the two candidates are currently serving as Board 
members.  Mr. Ballard will present a resolution at the September 21, 2021 Board 
Meeting that will notify the Public of the cancellation of the upcoming election.  
Mr. Ballard also discussed the budget calendar.  Jason Helm asked the Board to 
appoint a Trustee to serve on the budget committee.  The Board appointed Roger 
Nordgren to serve on the budget committee.  The committee will meet to discuss 
the budget on September 20, 2021 with the 2022 tentative budget binders to be 
dispersed at the October 19, 2021 Board Meeting and the 2022 tentative budget 
hearing taking place December 14, 2021.  Corey Rushton noted a possible 
conflict with the date of December meeting.  Kristy Johnson will follow-up with 
Mr. Rushton to verify the date. 
 
Troy Stout presented the water maintenance report. – See the Water Systems 
Update report attached to these minutes for details. 
 
Mr. Stout asked the Board to consider approval for the purchase of three Channel 
Grinders in the amount of $108,831.00 to JWC Environment for Armstrong and 
Decker Main Pump Stations.  A discussion took place regarding the pump parts 
and sole source procurement procedures. Roger Nordgren made a motion to 
approve the contract as noted. Following a second from Debra Armstrong, the 
motion passed as follows: 
 
Armstrong – aye                     Rushton – aye                         Nordgren – aye 
 
 



Granger-Hunter Improvement District Board of Trustees Meeting (Unapproved and Subject to Change) 

 

 

4 

 

Wastewater 
Maintenance Update 

 
Water Supply Review 

 
 

Capital Projects Update 
 
 
Consider Approval of a 
Change Order to Silver 
Spur Construction for 
Additional Asphalt for 

the 19F: 3600 West 
Waterline Project 

 
 

Engineering Department 
Update 

 
ADJOURNED 

 

Mr. Stout presented the wastewater maintenance report. – See the Wastewater 
Systems Update report attached to these minutes for details.  
 
Todd Marti discussed the water supply report. – See the Water Supply Review 
report attached to these minutes for details. 
 
Mr. Marti presented the capitol projects update. – See the Capitol Projects 
Update report attached to these minutes for details. 
 
Mr. Marti asked the Board to consider approval of change order to Silver Spur 
Construction in the amount of $238,697.26 for additional asphalt for the 19F: 
3600 West Waterline Project. After a discussion regarding the change order 
process, Corey Rushton made a motion to approve the change order as noted.  
Following a second from Debra Armstrong, the motion passed as follows: 
 
Armstrong – aye                     Rushton – aye                         Nordgren – aye 
 
Mr. Marti discussed the engineering department update. – See the Engineering 
Department Update report attached to these minutes for details.  
 
Inasmuch as all agenda items have been satisfied, Debra Armstrong made a 
motion to adjourn the meeting.  Following a second from Roger Nordgren, the 
motion passed as follows and the meeting adjourned at 6:42 P.M.  
 
Armstrong – aye                      Rushton – aye                      Nordgren – aye 
 
 
Debra K. Armstrong, Chair 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
 
Austin Ballard, Clerk 
 
 
__________________________________________ 



 

 
 

Our Team 
• Water and Sewer 

Master Plans 



Water and Sewer Master Plans –
Further Revenue and Rate 

Discussions
Granger-Hunter Improvement District

Presented by Bowen Collins & Associates and Zions Public Finance, Inc.



Rate Study 
Process

Step 3 Rate Design

Step 2 Cost of Service Evaluation

Step 1 Revenue Needs Analysis

Last Meeting’s Discussion



$0

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

$30,000,000

$40,000,000

$50,000,000

$60,000,000

$70,000,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031

10-Year Revenue and Expenditures 

Operating and Non-Operating Expenses CVWRF - Debt Service CVWRF - Operations

Debt Service Non-SRF Capital SRF Capital

Target Annual Capital Costs Revenue Projected Revenue - Existing Rates



Revenue Needs Conclusions:

• To sustainably fund the water and sewer system, Granger-Hunter ID needs 
to increase total revenues by approximately 30%

• Grants, bonding and project phasing can be used to adjust how quickly this 
increase is implemented

• Increases in revenue can come from a combination of sources



What’s the “right” amount of property tax 
revenue?

• Potential calculation of Public Fire Protection costs

• AWWA Manual

• Maine Water Utilities Association Formula = 3 to 3.5%

• Public Service Commission of Wisconsin Formula = 6 to 8%

• Original Custom Analysis Per Austin = 8% (Includes current outstanding bond obligations)

• Compare to existing property tax revenue of 11% Board Direction to Re-Analyze



Today’s Outline

•Report Back on Property Tax Issue

•Present Alternative Solutions to Revenue Needs

•Discuss Rate Design Considerations



Report Back on 
Property Tax



Property Tax Calculations

2021 Assessed Values 9,104,272,725$  

2021 Budget O&M less CVWRF bonding 32,147,339$         

Scenario Revenue Rev Incr Prop Tax Rate % of O&M % Prop Tax Rate Incr

Current Rate 3,769,169$    -$                  0.000414 11.7% -                                    

Cost Analysis 5,335,512$    1,566,343$    0.000586 16.6% 41.6%

5% Rate Increase 3,957,627$    188,458$        0.000435 12.3% 5.0%

10% Rate Increase 4,146,086$    376,917$         0.000455 12.9% 10.0%

15% Rate Increase 4,334,544$    565,375$        0.000476 13.5% 15.0%

30% Rate Increase 4,899,920$   1,130,751$     0.000538 15.2% 30.0%

45% Rate Increase 5,465,295$   1,696,126$    0.000600 17.0% 45.0%

Max Rate 7,283,418$    3,514,249$    0.000800 22.7% 93.2%



Property Tax Impact to Home and Business Owners

• The GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT tax on a $425,000
residence would increase from $96.77 to $136.98, which is $40.21 per year.

• The GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT tax on a $425,000
business would increase from $175.95 to $249.05, which is $73.10 per year.



Property Tax Recommendations

• Based on anticipated “Public Good” services GHID offers, the analysis supports a
property tax revenue of approximately 16% of operating expenses

• To move forward with this amount, the Board should agree to the following steps:

• Begin the truth-in-taxation (TNT) process by notifying the county legislative body and Tax
Commission of the date, time and location of the public hearing where the budget and
property tax increase will be discussed

• State the intent in this meeting to increase property taxes

• State the dollar amount increase of $1,566,343, or other amount as decided

• State the purpose of the increase, which staff has identified as “Public Good” services

• State the approximate percentage of property tax increase of 41.6%, or other amount as
decided

• Issue all appropriate advertisements and parcel specific notices. Set a public hearing date
for final consideration of property tax increase (November 2021).

• Adopt a resolution (December 2021) finalizing increase. This resolution must be sent to the
county legislative body and Tax Commission.



Central Valley Fee Assessment

2017

• Central Valley Water Reclamation Facility (CVWRF) begins significant facility
rehabilitation

• GHID installed a $5 per EDU fee assessment

2022

• Preliminary 2022 Budget CVWRF debt service charges are anticipated to
increase by approximately $3.4m

• Cumulative amounts collected from the $5 per EDU fee will not be sufficient to
cover the increasing debt service

• GHID needs to increase EDU fee to $11.25 to cover these charges



Alternatives to Meet 
Revenue Needs



Revenue Assumptions and Needs

• Assumptions:

• 42% one-time property tax increase

• Increase the CVWRF Assessment (Ex. from $5 to $11.25 for Residential)

• With above assumptions revenues only reach 80% of expenses

• Revenue will still need to be increased by 20% to sustainably fund the water 
and sewer system



Option A 

• One-time rate increase of 40% in 2022 with annual increases of 2.5% 
thereafter will fill the 20% revenue gap

Type text here



$0

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

$30,000,000

$40,000,000

$50,000,000

$60,000,000

$70,000,000

$80,000,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031

Option A: 10-Year Revenue and Expenditures 

Operating and Non-Operating Expenses CVWRF - Debt Service CVWRF - Operations

Debt Service Non-SRF Capital SRF Capital

Target Annual Capital Costs Revenue Projected Revenue

Property Tax Income

Type text here



Option B 

• Initial rate increase of 17.5% in 2022 

• Rate increase of 15% in 2023

• Rate increase of 9% in 2024

• Annual rate increase of 3% starting in 2025 and continuing thereafter

• Bond of $20M in 2022 for capital costs



$0

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

$30,000,000

$40,000,000

$50,000,000

$60,000,000

$70,000,000

$80,000,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031

Option B: 10-Year Revenue and Expenditures 

Operating and Non-Operating Expenses CVWRF - Debt Service CVWRF - Operations

Debt Service Non-SRF Capital SRF Capital

Target Annual Capital Costs Revenue Projected Revenue

Property Tax Income Bond Proceeds

*Bond issued in 2022 for 2022-2023 capital expenditures



Option C 

• Initial rate increase of 10% in 2022 

• Rate increase of 7.5% in 2023 and 2025

• Annual rate increase of 6 % in 2026 and continuing thereafter

• Bond of $45M in 2022 for capital costs

• Bond of $25M in 2027 for capital costs



$0

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

$30,000,000

$40,000,000

$50,000,000

$60,000,000

$70,000,000

$80,000,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031

Option C: 10-Year Revenue and Expenditures 

Operating and Non-Operating Expenses CVWRF - Debt Service CVWRF - Operations

Debt Service Non-SRF Capital SRF Capital

Target Annual Capital Costs Revenue Projected Revenue - Existing Rates

Property Tax Income Bond Proceeds

*Bond issued in 2022 for 2022-2025 capital expenditures
**Bond issued in 2027 for 2027-2028 capital expenditures



Rate Design 
Considerations



Rate Study 
Process

Step 3 Rate Design

Step 2 Cost of Service Evaluation

Step 1 Revenue Needs Analysis

Rate Design Issues



Water – Tier Design

$0.00

$1.00

$2.00

$3.00

$4.00

$5.00

$6.00

 -  10,000  20,000  30,000  40,000  50,000  60,000  70,000  80,000  90,000  100,000

U
se

r 
R

at
e

Quantity (kgal)

Comparison Tiered Rate

KID Magna Water Tay-Ben West Jordan GHID



Water – Tier Design

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

 -  10,000  20,000  30,000  40,000  50,000  60,000

Quantity (kgal)

Normalized Tiered Rate

KID Magna Water Tay-Ben West Jordan GHID

Type text here



Water – Tier Design

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

 -  10,000  20,000  30,000  40,000  50,000  60,000

Quantity (kgal)

Normalized Tiered Rate

KID Magna Water Tay-Ben West Jordan GHID

Approximate Cost 
of Service

Type text here



Water – Tier Design

Advantages Who Benefits

Option 1 – Leave As-Is • Consistency
• Revenue Stability

• Large Properties
• High Water Users

Option 2 – Scale Up Existing 
Tiers

• Better Align with Cost of 
Service

• Encourage Conservation

• Small Properties
• Low Water Users

Option 3 – Scale Up Existing Tiers 
& Add 4th Tier

• Better Align with Cost of 
Service

• Encourage Conservation
• Target Extreme Water Use

• Small Properties
• Low Water Users



Non-Residential Tiers

Option 1 (Current Approach): All non-residential charged flat rates

Option 2: Tiered rates defined by meter size

Meter Size Block 1 Block 2 Block 3 Block 4

¾” & smaller 9 16 40 +

1” 18 46 106 +

1 ½” 36 92 212 +

2” 58 147 339 +

3” 140 359 827 +

4” 257 658 1,516 +

6” 515 1,316 3,032 +

8” 1,024 2,617 6,031 +

10” 1,024 2,617 6,031 +

Sample Non-Residential Tiers by Meter Size
Upper Block Limits (kgal)



0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

C
o

n
s

u
m

p
ti

o
n

 (
T

h
o

u
s

a
n

d
s

 o
f 

G
a

ll
o

n
s

)

Month

4" Commercial Average Water User

Average User Data

Block 2 Division Point = 658,000 gallons



0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

C
o

n
s

u
m

p
ti

o
n

 (
T

h
o

u
s

a
n

d
s

 o
f 

G
a

ll
o

n
s

)

Month

4" Commercial Highest, Average, Lowest

Highest User
Data

Lowest User
Data

Average User
Data



Water – Non-Residential Rates

Advantages Who Benefits

Option 1 – Flat Monthly Rate 
(Current Approach)

• Simplicity
• Equitable Application to 

Different User Types

• Commercial Constant Water 
Users

• High Peaking Factor 
Customers - Schools & Parks

• High Water Users (Relative to 
Meter Size)

Option 2 – Tiers by Meter Size • Conservation • Low Water Users (Relative to 
Meter Size)



0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

 -  10,000  20,000  30,000  40,000  50,000  60,000

U
se

r 
R

at
e

Quantity (kgal)

Standard Rates

Water – Drought Mitigation Rates



0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

 -  10,000  20,000  30,000  40,000  50,000  60,000

U
se

r 
R

at
e

Quantity (kgal)

Drought Mitigation Rates Standard Rates

Increased 
Rates

Decreased 
Tier Volumes

Water – Drought Mitigation Rates



Water – Drought Mitigation Rates

Advantages Who Benefits

Option 0 – No Drought 
Mitigation Rates

• Simplicity
• Consistency

• Users Not Interested in 
Conserving During Drought

Option 1 – Reduce Tier Volumes • Logical Connection to 
Reduced Water Availability

• Motivation for Conservation
• Offsets Lost Revenue During 

Drought

Option 2 – Increase Tier Rates • Easy to Understand (“Drought 
Surcharge”)

• Motivation for Conservation
• Offsets Lost Revenue During 

Drought

Option 3 – Reduce Tier Volumes 
& Increase Rates

• Highest Motivation for 
Conservation

• Offsets Lost Revenue During 
Drought



Sewer – Fixed vs. Volume Charges

Low Use High Use

Base Volume

Low Use High Use

Base Volume

Fixed Flat Charge Base + Volume

Low Water User High Water User Low Water User High Water User

$ $



Sewer – Fixed vs. Volume Charges

• BCA

Advantages Who Benefits

Option 1 – Flat Monthly Rate 
(Current Approach)

• Simplicity
• Stability
• Status Quo

• Large Families
• High Water Users

Option 2 – Base + Volume Charge • Equity
• Conservation

• Grandma
• Low Water Users



What to Expect Next
• Direction from Board on Property Tax – Today

• General guidance from Board on Overall Revenue Needs - Today

• General guidance from Board on Rate Structure Alternatives - Today

• Statement of Intent to Raise and Amount of Property Tax – Before October 19

• Presentation of Detailed Rate Alternatives – October

• Presentation of Draft Recommended Rates - November

• Truth in Taxation Hearing - December

• Rate Hearings and Adoption – December

• Implement Any Adopted Rate Changes – January 1, 2022



 

 
Our 

Community 
• Jordan Valley Water 

Conservancy District Review 
• Central Valley Water 

Reclamation Facility Review 
• Legislative Update – ARPA 
• Resolution No. 9-21-21 



Jordan Valley Water Conservancy District Update– September 2021



Jordan Valley Water Conservancy District Update– September 2021



 

 
 

Central Valley 
Water 

Reclamation 
Facility Review 



Central Valley Water Reclamation Update– September 2021



Central Valley Water Reclamation Update– September 2021



 

 
 

Legislative 
Update - ARPA 



ARPA – American Rescue Plan Act of 2021



ARPA – American Rescue Plan Act of 2021



ARPA – American Rescue Plan Act of 2021







Summary

• $100 Million in appropriations

• $50 Million for Secondary Meters

• Remainder prioritized on rural systems, septic tank abandonment.

• Preparing a more detailed plan for next month



 

 
 

Resolution No. 
09-21-21 



 
 

 
 

2888 South 3600 West   •   P.O. Box 701110   •   West Valley City, Utah 84170-1110 •   Phone (801) 968-3551   •   Fax (801) 968-5467 •   www.ghid.org 
 

Jason Helm, P.E. General Manager, CEO 
Michael T. Stout, Assistant General Manager, COO 
Todd Marti, P.E. Assistant General Manager and District Engineer 
 

Debra K. Armstrong, Chair 
Corey L. Rushton, Trustee 

Roger K. Nordgren, Trustee 
 
 

 
 
DATE:  September 16, 2021 
 
TO:  Board of Trustees of Granger-Hunter Improvement District 
 
FROM:  Austin Ballard, Controller/Clerk  
 
SUBJECT: Cancellation of Election and Consideration of Resolution 09-21-21 
 
In accordance with Utah code 17B-1-306, Granger-Hunter Improvement District (District) is 
required to hold at-large elections for expiring terms for each Board of Trustee seat. This year, 
the terms for the trustee seats held by Debra Armstrong and Roger Nordgren expire on December 
31st, 2021. As of August 31st, 2021, there were only two candidates who successfully filed their 
candidacy for the at-large trustee seats. Per state law, if only one candidate files [per vacancy] 
and there is no write-in candidate who complies with section 20A-9-601, the board, in 
accordance with Section 20A-1-206 may: 

(i) Consider the candidate[s] to be elected to the position; and 
(ii) Cancel the election.   

 
To cancel the election, the Board must adopt a resolution (included herewith), and notice of the 
cancellation must be published on the Public Notice Website, post ten additional notices in places 
that are most likely to give notice to the voters in within the District, the District website, and 
published twice in a newspaper of general circulation before the day of the election. 
 
It is recommended that the Board approve Resolution 09-21-21 CANCELLING THE ELECTION OF 
TRUSTEES TO THE BOARD OF THE GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, and that the 
Board authorize staff to post the required notices as described above. 
 
Please feel free to contact me at 801-955-2206 or at a.ballard@ghid.org if you have any 
questions or input.  Thank you for your support. 
 



 

 
 

2888 South 3600 West   •   P.O. Box 701110   •   West Valley City, Utah 84170-1110 •   Phone (801) 968-3551   •   Fax (801) 968-5467 •   www.ghid.org 
 

Jason Helm, P.E. General Manager, CEO 
Michael T. Stout, Assistant General Manager, COO 
Todd Marti, P.E. Assistant General Manager and District Engineer 
 

Debra K. Armstrong, Chair 
Corey L. Rushton, Trustee 

Rodger K. Nordgren, Trustee 
 
 

 
 

 

Resolution of the Board of Trustees 
Resolution No. 9-21-21 

 
 

INTENT TO CANCEL THE 2021 ELECTION OF TWO TRUSTEE SEATS 
TO THE BOARD OF THE GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT  
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Granger-Hunter Improvement District (“the District”) has 
provided the required notice of the expiring term of its two trustees; 
 
WHEREAS, the appropriate time and notice has been given for all candidates to file, including 
the appropriate time for any write-in candidate, for the two at-large seats; 
 
WHEREAS, the number of candidates for the office of trustee, including eligible write-in candidate, 
does not exceed the number of the open trustee positions for which the candidates have filed; 
 
WHEREAS, there are no other local district ballot propositions; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 
 

1. The Granger-Hunter Improvement District’s 2021 election is hereby cancelled. 
 
2. The remaining trustee candidates are running unopposed. 

 
3. The candidates that are running are considered elected to office whose term starts at noon 

on January 1, 2022 
 

4. This Resolution shall take effect upon authorized execution. 
 
PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this 21st day of September, 2021. 
 
 
 
     __________________________________________ 
     Debra K. Armstrong, Chair of the Board of Trustees 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Austin Ballard, District Clerk 



 

Our 
Operations 
• Review & Discuss Financial Report 

for August 2021 
• Review & Discuss Paid Invoice 

Report for August 2021 
• Water Maintenance Update 

• Wastewater Maintenance Update 
• Water Supply Review 
• Capital Projects Update 

• 20G: Building B Addition and 
Remodel Project Action Item 

• Engineering Department Update 



     Page 1 of 3

REVENUES

Amended

Actual Budget % of Actual Budget % of

8/31/2020 2020 Budget 8/31/2021 2021 Budget

REVENUES

Operating Revenues:

Water Sales $ 13,238,154 $ 19,728,000 67.1% $ 12,530,938 $ 19,884,000 63.0%

Sewer Service Charges 7,105,602   11,807,000 60.2% 7,127,786   11,677,000 61.0%

Central Valley Assessmt 1,788,641   2,700,000   66.2% 1,801,602   2,700,000   66.7%

Engineering Fees 6,042          6,000          100.7% 6,849          7,000          97.8%

Connection fees 31,876        34,000        93.8% 21,528        40,000        53.8%

Inspection 47,276        49,000        96.5% 48,787        55,000        88.7%

Delinquent/Turn-on Fees 8,665          35,000        24.8% 4,240          35,000        12.1%

Conservation Grant 48,390        68,500        70.6% 34,570        41,300        83.7%

Total Operating Revenue 22,274,646 34,427,500 64.7% 21,576,300 34,439,300 62.7%

Property Tax Revenue:

Property Tax 30,971        3,400,000   0.9% 4,362          3,400,000   0.1%

Motor Vehicle 130,448      250,000      52.2% 152,142      250,000      60.9%

Personal Property 311,877      325,000      96.0% 307,071      325,000      94.5%

Delinquent Tax/Interest 48,377        80,000        60.5% 51,606        80,000        64.5%

Tax Increment for RDA -                  200,000      0.0% -                  200,000      0.0%

Total Property Tax Revenue 521,673      4,255,000   12.3% 515,181      4,255,000   12.1%

Non-operating Revenue:

Impact Fees - Water 617,426      300,000      205.8% 394,220      450,000      87.6%

Impact Fees - Sewer 338,448      150,000      225.6% 230,760      200,000      115.4%

Interest 262,438      525,000      50.0% 94,957        250,000      38.0%

Sale of Surplus Equipment 6,279          59,000        10.6% 19,972        40,000        49.9%

Other 81,541        120,000      68.0% 74,398        120,000      62.0%

Total Non-operating Revenue 1,306,132   1,154,000   113.2% 814,307      1,060,000   76.8%

Total Revenues $ 24,102,451 $ 39,836,500 60.5% $ 22,905,788 $ 39,754,300 57.6%

Percent of Year Completed: 66.67%



Page 2 of 3

 EXPENSES

Amended

Actual Budget % of Actual Budget % of

8/31/2020 2020 Budget 8/31/2021 2021 Budget

EXPENSES

Payroll Wages:

Salaries & Wages $ 3,291,566   $ 5,028,072     65.5% $ 3,116,008     $ 4,893,240      63.7%

Overtime Wages 76,393        175,000        43.7% 61,836          175,000         35.3%

On-call Pay 43,211        71,280          60.6% 45,657          71,280           64.1%

Incentive Pay 5,727          15,000          38.2% 6,605            15,000           44.0%

Vehicle Allowance 4,638          9,000            51.5% 3,861            9,000             42.9%

Other/OPEB 307,444      250,000        123.0% (1,062)           250,000         -0.4%

Clothing Allowance 18,975        22,000          86.3% 20,625          21,450           96.2%

   Total Payroll Wages 3,747,954   5,570,352     67.3% 3,253,530     5,434,970      59.9%

Payroll Benefits:

State Retirement Plan 533,863      955,045        55.9% 553,517        947,920         58.4%

401K Plan 396,305      598,677        66.2% 375,670        594,210         63.2%

Health/Dental Insurance 986,934      1,670,320     59.1% 1,020,488     1,687,023      60.5%

Medicare 49,323        73,547          67.1% 46,280          72,730           63.6%

Workers Compensation Ins 11,850        40,000          29.6% 22,879          40,000           57.2%

Life/LTD/LTC Insurance 51,378        75,000          68.5% 68,750          75,000           91.7%

State Unemployment 5,965          5,000            119.3% -                    10,000           0.0%

   Total Payroll Benefits 2,035,618   3,417,589     59.6% 2,087,584     3,426,883      60.9%

Operations & Maintenance:

Repair & Replacement 330,027      655,560        50.3% 418,106        731,400         57.2%

Building & Grounds 47,153        82,450          57.2% 45,588          82,450           55.3%

Vehicle Maint & Fuel 110,578      189,431        58.4% 126,624        193,680         65.4%

Vehicle Lease 149,801      254,600        58.8% 156,239        225,800         69.2%

Tools & Supplies 42,545        73,400          58.0% 45,634          89,750           50.8%

Water Purchases 6,455,127   11,010,400   58.6% 6,844,309     10,717,260    63.9%

Treatment Chemicals 20,779        41,300          50.3% 37,628          41,300           91.1%

Water Lab Testing Fees 27,685        76,750          36.1% 13,609          66,500           20.5%

Utilities 492,623      982,000        50.2% 422,278        905,000         46.7%

  Total O&M 7,676,318   13,365,891   57.4% 8,110,015     13,053,140    62.1%

CVWRF:

Facility Operations 2,334,724   4,494,860     51.9% 3,010,331     5,517,471      54.6%

Project Betterments 352,092      1,360,725     25.9% 968,070        1,748,831      55.4%

Interceptor Monitoring (2,967)         -                    0.0% -                    -                     0.0%

Pre-treatment Field 157,525      283,675        55.5% 202,619        286,024         70.8%

Laboratory 132,566      227,418        58.3% 170,164        251,563         67.6%

CVW Debt Service 1,303,403   1,954,999     66.7% 2,234,066     3,311,053      67.5%

  Total CVWRF $ 4,277,343   $ 8,321,677     51.4% $ 6,585,250     $ 11,114,942    59.2%



Page 3 of 3

Actual Budget % of Actual Budget % of

8/31/2020 2020 Budget 8/31/2021 2021 Budget

General & Administrative:

Office Supplies/Printing $ 9,727          $ 33,940          28.7% $ 10,129          $ 27,840           36.4%

Postage & Mailing 84,358        159,500        52.9% 84,551          155,550         54.4%

General Administrative 27,325        61,000          44.8% 19,689          133,810         14.7%

Computer Supplies 158,045      494,243        32.0% 250,234        471,167         53.1%

General Insurance 264,920      439,612        60.3% 294,192        360,595         81.6%

Utilities 46,135        95,500          48.3% 41,181          95,500           43.1%

Telephone 71,611        120,200        59.6% 73,023          113,600         64.3%

Training & Education 42,873        133,200        32.2% 19,566          97,475           20.1%

Safety 30,943        39,620          78.1% 23,645          40,620           58.2%

Legal fees 15,616        44,000          35.5% 24,942          54,000           46.2%

Auditing Fees 12,000        12,000          100.0% 12,000          12,000           100.0%

Professional Consulting 30,774        97,400          31.6% 102,719        347,400         29.6%

Public Relations/Conservation 11,276        55,000          20.5% 59,615          98,500           60.5%

Banking & Bonding 217,569      330,900        65.8% 215,461        332,900         64.7%

Admin Contingency -                  180,000        0.0% -                    180,000         0.0%

  Total General Administrative 1,023,172   2,296,115     44.6% 1,230,947     2,520,957      48.8%

Total Operating Expenses 18,760,405 32,971,624   56.9% 21,267,326   35,550,892    59.8%

0.0%

Net Operating Revenues 5,342,046   6,864,876     77.8% 1,638,462     4,203,408      39.0%

Indirect Operating Expenses:

Depreciation -                  7,700,000     0.0% 5,309,634     8,000,000      66.4%

RDA Pass-Through -                  200,000        0.0% -                    200,000         0.0%

  Total Indirect Operating Exp -                  7,900,000     0.0% 5,309,634     8,200,000      64.8%

Equipment and Infrastructure:

Infrastructure 2,445,928   15,746,152   15.5% 3,721,140     21,212,000    17.5%

New Vehicles & Equipment 376,233      409,747        91.8% 115,652        625,810         18.5%

  Total Equipment 2,822,161   16,155,899   17.5% 3,836,792     21,837,810    17.6%

Debt Service:

Bond Interest and Fees 22,971        244,995        9.4% 36,781          207,388         17.7%

Bond Principal Pmt ('12 Bond) 288,000      288,000        100.0% 295,000        311,000         94.9%

Bond Princ Pmt (2019 DEQ) 435,525      310,000        140.5% 532,000        532,000         100.0%

  Total Debt Service 746,496      842,995        88.6% 863,781        1,050,388      82.2%

Total Equip & Debt Service 3,568,657   16,998,894   21.0% 4,700,573     22,888,198    20.5%

Net Revenues 1,773,389   (18,034,018)  -9.8% (8,371,745)    (26,884,790)   31.1%

Infrastructure and Debt

Add back Depreciation -                  7,700,000     0.0% 5,309,634     8,000,000      66.4%

Add back Infrastructure 2,445,928   15,746,152   15.5% 3,721,140     21,212,000    17.5%

Net Revenues, net of Infr & Depr $ 4,219,317   $ 5,412,134     78.0% $ 659,029        $ 2,327,210      28.3%



 

 
 
 

August 2021 
Paid Invoice 

Report 



























































 

 
 
 

Water 
Maintenance 

Update 



Water Systems Update 

2021 Data:

 Eight Breaks in August

 39 Breaks Year-to-Date

 18% Below YTD Four-Year 
Average 

 August Was Above the
Average of 5 Breaks

Long Term Break Rate Target 
Development Considerations:

 Level of Service Targets / 
Disruption of Service Rates

 Water Quality Impacts

 Water Rate Impacts

 Claim Exposure

 System Reliability 



Water Maintenance Update 

Waterline breaks and leaks totaled eight breaks and seven service leaks in August 2021.  

Water Breaks and Leaks Four Year Average Trends

The District’s total ruptures jumped above the four-year average trendline for 
August 2021.



Water Systems Maintenance 

2021 Data:

 112 corrective valve work orders have been completed to-date. Two 
were completed in August, 41 were created to-date, and 31 currently 
remain open. 

 The valve maintenance crew has completed 1,686 planned valve work 
orders to date. Planned valve maintenance continues to be decreased 
due to previously discussed greater focus that has been placed on 
completing all fire hydrant inspections by the end of August. Planned 
valve maintenance should commence again in September. 

 Crews have finished all the planned fire hydrant inspections for the year 
and have now started on the planned valve maintenance. 154 planned 
valve maintenance work orders were completed in the month of 
August, crews will now focus on the planned valve maintenance for the 
remainder of the year. 

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140
160
180
200

Corrective Valve Maintenance

112 of 114             -2.30%

0
500

1000
1500
2000
2500
3000
3500
4000
4500
5000

Planned Valve Maintenance

1686 of 3080               -45.3%



Water Systems Maintenance 

2021 Data:

 Valve crews have located 11 valves off to date. All valves found off have 
been turned back on.

 112 corrective valve work orders have been completed to date. The 
goal is to have the valve repaired or replaced within ten days from the 
creation of the work order. The corrective valve work order completed 
efficiency graph shows our progress and efficiency.  In the month of 
August two valve work orders were completed within ten days, and 
zero valves were  completed over the goal of ten days.

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Valves Found Off Rate

11 of 16             31.3%

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Valve Work Order Efficiency

Completed Within 10 Days Not Completed Within 10 Days



Water Systems Maintenance 

2021 Data:

 The fire hydrant crew has completed 3595 planned fire hydrant 
maintenance inspections to date. We expected to have completed 
about 2304 inspections by the end of August 2021. All planned fire 
hydrant maintenance inspections have been completed for the year.   

 Fire hydrant work order efficiency during the month of August 
consisted mainly of fire hydrants that needed minor repairs reported by 
the planned fire hydrant inspections.  Currently we have 338 open fire 
hydrant work orders, most of the open work orders are for minor 
repairs. There were 26 hydrant work orders created in the month of 
August as a result of the fire hydrant inspections. 

0
500

1000
1500
2000
2500
3000
3500
4000

Planned Fire Hydrant Maintenance

3595 of 2304            56.03%

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Fire Hydrant Work Order Efficiency

Completed within 10 days Not completed within 10 days



Water Systems Maintenance 

2021 Data:

 To date, we have had 42 fire hydrants tagged out of service for repairs 
or replacements. We currently still have ten hydrants out of service, 
and we are waiting on parts from the vendor to repair or replace the 
remaining ten hydrants. 

 The District’s fire hydrant crew did not complete any scheduled paint 
prep or fire hydrant painting in the month of August due to increased 
efforts on the completion of the fire hydrant inspections. We are not 
scheduling any painting for the remainder of the year in order to focus 
efforts on higher priority scheduled valve maintenance and fire hydrant 
repairs for the remainder of the year.  

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45

Hydrant Effectiveness Out of Service Rate

42 of 16           162.50%

0
50

100
150
200
250
300
350
400

Fire Hydrants Coated To-Date with Target

90 of 348              -74.1%



Water Systems Maintenance 

2021 Data:

 70 of 117 daily routine scheduled maintenance inspections were 
completed in August. 605 of 845 daily routine scheduled maintenance 
inspections have been completed to date. The daily routine 
maintenance inspections are low due to higher priority unexpected 
repairs and related tasks that have developed throughout the year.  
This metric will be updated to capitalize on Operation’s activities 
providing an optimal and synergistic target moving forward.

 All the Weekly routine maintenance tasks have been completed  in line 
with manufacturer recommendations for the month of August. 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

Daily Scheduled Routine Maintenance

605 of 845         -28.4%

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Weekly Scheduled Routine Maintenance

277 of 277                100%           



Water Systems Maintenance 

2021 Data:

 All the Monthly scheduled routine maintenance has been completed at 
all the water sites for the month of August.  

 There were 12 completed quarterly scheduled routine maintenance 
tasks for the month of August.  Next scheduled quarterly routine 
maintenance tasks are scheduled to be completed in November 2021.   0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Monthly Scheduled Routine Maintenance
69 of 69   100%

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Quarterly Scheduled Routine Maintenance

36 of 36    100%



Water Systems Maintenance 

2021 Data:

 The water maintenance crews have completed 21 PRV maintenance 
inspections during the month of August.  District crews have completed 
154 out of 156 PRV inspections for the year.  

 Crews have had to complete 66 reactive work orders to date. In the 
month of August there was 10 completed. Reactive work orders are 
work orders created when an emergency or event outside of routine 
maintenance occurs. Our target goal is 10 or less reactive work orders 
per month. 

0

50

100

150

200

250

Monthly PRV Scheduled Routine Maintenance

154 of 156           -1.3%

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Reactive Work Orders Completed

66 of 80            -17.5%



 

 
 

Wastewater 
Maintenance 

Update 



Wastewater Maintenance Update 

Significant updates:
• After working with the IT group, a Wastewater Dashboard was developed and built which will 

ease the access of information for work completed by the Wastewater group at the click of a 
button.  This will provide an additional method for optimizing efforts.

• Successfully cleaned the Wet Well and Channels at Armstrong WWPS.



Wastewater Maintenance Update 

Variance Description – We are now in full CCTV operation with 
getting Unit 31 back from having the generator repaired, and had 
a great month gaining some ground, and are currently trending 
above our targets.

Variance Description – We are trending on target. We have 
down to 2  Vac trucks for about a month and a half during the 
months of June and July. We are hoping to gain more ground 
during the month of August.

Variance Description – Remain right on target for Hotspots.Variance Description – While being down  a vac truck, or 
during equipment down time, the crews have been addressing 
MH Inspections as able in attempts to get us back on target.

0.0
50.0

100.0
150.0
200.0

Collection System Cleaning

Target Actuals

113.9 Mi 1.26 % 

0

20

40

60

80
Collection System CCTV

Target Actuals

60.4 Mi 20.72 %

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

Manhole Inspection 

Target Actuals

3,134 21.81 %

0
5

10
15
20
25

Collection System Hot Spot Cleaning

Target Actuals

10.7 Mi .06 %



Wastewater Maintenance Update 

Variance Description – Our WWPS crew is working hard on preventative 
maintenance,. We are slightly below our target, mostly due to a few days of 
cleaning the Wet Well and Channels at Armstrong.

Variance Description – We had more than expected reactive maintenance 
performed during the month of August,. With  10/14 of the reactive WO’s 
being performed at Armstrong WWPS. We attempted to reduce the amount 
of reactive WO’s at Armstrong.

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

WWPS Reactive Maintenance WO Totals

Target Actuals

61 WO's 8.93 %

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

WWPS Preventative Maintenance WO Totals

Target Actuals

708 WO's 1.67 %



Wastewater Maintenance Update 

8

28

15 15

28

25

17
18

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

In
sp

ec
tio

ns

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge

Grease Interceptor Inspections - 2021

# Inspected Projected % Complete Actual % Complete

Inspections, 18, 82%

Education, 2, 9%

Cleaning Notices 
Complete, 2, 9%

Cleaning Notices 
Incomplete, 0, 0%

Other, 2, 9%

FOG PROGRAM - AUGUST 

Inspections Education Cleaning Notices Complete Cleaning Notices Incomplete



Wastewater Maintenance Update 

The surrounding area average BOD/TSS numbers come from 2020 data collected from the following entities:  South Valley Sewer District, South Davis 
Sewer District, Snyderville Basin Water Reclamation Facility, Timpanogos Special Service District, and Springville City. More Data is being collected to 
better understand where our sewer strength levels stand.

0.00

50.00

100.00

150.00

200.00

250.00

300.00

350.00

BOD - Concentration

GHID BOD GHID 3 Year Average Wasatch Front AVG BOD - 2020 CVWRF BOD - 2020

0.00

50.00

100.00

150.00

200.00

250.00

300.00

TSS - Concentration

GHID TSS GHID 3 Year Average Wasatch Front AVG TSS - 2020 CVWRF TSS - 2020



 

 
 

 
Water Supply 

Review 



Water Production  

In August we saw a 12% reduction in total 
water produced compared to our 5-year 
average for the month.

Total water produced through August (acre-ft):

0.00

500.00

1000.00

1500.00

2000.00

2500.00

3000.00

3500.00

4000.00

4500.00

5000.00

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

A
C

R
E 

FE
ET

Combined Source Total Water Produced 

Total AVG Last 5 years 2020 2021

2020 2021 5-year

20,464.35 17,411.84 18,065.57

14.92% 3.75%



Water Production

*estimated 

70%

30%

2021 YTD PRODUCTION BY SOURCE

JVWCD GHID Wells

6%

17%

32%
17%

18%

10%

2021 YTD WELL PRODUCTION

Well 1 Well 8 Well 12 Well 15 Well 16 Well 17



Water Production

71.44%
Percentage of contract used.

(as of 09/15/2021)

(200.00)

0.00

200.00

400.00

600.00

800.00

1,000.00

1,200.00

1,400.00

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

A
C

R
E 

FE
ET

GHID Deep Wells

5 Year AVG 2020 2021

0.00

5,000.00

10,000.00

15,000.00

20,000.00

25,000.00

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

A
C

R
E 

FE
ET

ACCUMULATIVE JVWCD WATER CONSUMPTION

Goal Trend Line 2019 Accumulative Use

2020 Accumulative Use 2021 Accumulative Use



Sewer Pumped

In August we averaged 13.2 MGD of wastewater sent to CVWRF.



 

 
 

 
Capital Projects 

Update 



Capital Projects Approval
20G: Building B Addition and Remodel

Capital Project: Building B Remodel/Addition
Consultant: EDA (Edwards Daniels Architects)
Contractor: To be determined
Design Progress: 100%
Budget: $1,132,000.00
Original Construction: -

Project Description: Upgrades & remodel of Building B, including bathroom and
kitchen, remodel of the mezzanine and office addition to meet current and future
needs of the district.

Summary: The District posted an Invitation to Bid on the Utah Public Procurement 
Place (U3P) and on the District’s website. A public bid opening was held on March 12 
and seven (7) bids were received.

It is recommended that the low bidder, Broderick & Henderson Construction, L.C., be 
awarded the construction contract. Broderick & Henderson Construction, L.C. has 
completed several projects similar in size and scope. In addition to this the District 
had a positive experience working with them during the recent Building A remodel.

Approval Requested: Consider the award of a construction contract to 
Broderick & Henderson Construction, L.C. for the 20G: Building B Addition 
and Remodel project in the amount of $1,410,500.00.

1 Broderick & Henderson Construction, L.C. $           1,410,500.00
2 KDK Construction, LLC $           1,434,857.00

3 Judd Construction $           1,530,000.00
4 Crew General Contractors, Inc. $           1,601,600.00
5 Entelen Design-Build $           1,698,547.00
6 Wasatch West Contracting $           1,748,000.00
7 Valley Design & Construction, LLC $           1,806,250.00



Capital Projects Status
20A&I: 3100 South to 4100 South Redwood Road Water and 
Sewer Project
Capital Project: Redwood Road Pipeline Replacement (4100 South to

3100 South) & Valley Fair Mall Feedlines

Project Description: Replace aging distribution piping in Redwood Road and
construct a new sewer line running north to provide additional capacity for new
growth. The pipelines will be funded by the Utah SRF and sewer lines will be funded
by District impact fees.

Project Update: Design is ongoing.

20B: Rushton Groundwater Treatment Plant
Capital Project: Wells 1, 12, 17 Treatment Facility

Project Description: A new water treatment facility to remove iron, manganese and
ammonia from Wells No. 1, 12 and 17 at the Well No. 12 site at 1490 West 3100
South.

Project Update: The bid opening will be held September 30.

Consultant: JUB Engineers, Inc. Contractor: To Be Determined

Original 
Contract:

$        581,470.00 
Original 

Contract:
$                          -

Current 
Contract:

$        676,744.00 
Current 

Contract:
$                          -

% Contract 
Change:

16%
% Change 

Order
0%

Amount Paid: $        648,021.55 Amount Paid:

% Complete: 96% % Complete: 0%

Consultant:
Bowen, Collins & 
Associates

Contractor: To Be Determined

Original 
Contract:

$        390,000.00 
Original 

Contract:
$                          -

Current 
Contract:

$        390,000.00 
Current 

Contract:
$                          -

% Contract 
Change:

0%
% Change 

Order
0%

Amount Paid: $           20,189.00 Amount Paid: $                          -

% Complete: 5% % Complete: 0%



20B-1: RGWTP Waterlines Project
Capital Project: Wells 1, 12, 17 Treatment Facility

Project Description: As part of the Rushton Groundwater Treatment Plant, piping
modifications are necessary in 3300 South and 3100 South.

Project Update: A Preconstruction Meeting was held on August 10, 2021 and
Notice to Proceed has been issued. Contractor will be unable to secure material
until October. In order to prevent winter time weather delays within UDOT ROW the
contractor will start work next spring.

20D: Kent Booster Pump Station Replacement and Tank 
Purchase
Capital Project: Tank Farm Booster Replacement/Tank

Purchase/Energy Improvements Project

Project Description: Replacement of the existing Kent Booster Pump Station at
Tank Farm (4400 South 4800 West), site piping replacements, and purchase of
two existing 5 MG Jordan Valley Water tanks.

Project Update: A 90% design review meeting was held on August 31. The
Consultant is finalizing design and legal description revisions. It is anticipated that
bidding will occur in the next couple months.

Capital Projects Status

Consultant: JUB Engineers, Inc. Contractor:
Silver Spur 
Construction

Original 
Contract:

part of RGWTP
Original 

Contract:
$     1,172,500.00 

Current 
Contract:

part of RGWTP
Current 

Contract:
$     1,172,500.00 

% Contract 
Change:

part of RGWTP
% Change 

Order
0%

Amount Paid: part of RGWTP Amount Paid: $                          -

% Complete: part of RGWTP % Complete: 0%

Waterline Alignment

Consultant: HA&L Engineers Contractor: To Be Determined

Original 
Contract:

$        334,146.23 
Original 

Contract:
$                          -

Current 
Contract:

$        348,257.23 
Current 

Contract:
$                          -

% Contract 
Change:

4%
% Change 

Order
0%

Amount Paid: $        331,646.68 Amount Paid: $                          -

% Complete: 95% % Complete: 0%



20E: Pioneer WWPS Replacement
Capital Project: Pioneer WWPS Replacement &

Pipeline/ Forcemain Upgrades

Project Description: Replacement of the existing 500 GPM Pioneer Wastewater
Pump Station located at 2250 South Constitution Boulevard with a new pump
station to be located at 2184 South Constitution Boulevard.

Project Update: Submittal review is ongoing. The removal of the Brighton Canal box
culvert and installation of the West Valley City storm drain is now anticipated to
start in October.

20G: Building B Addition and Remodel
Capital Project: Building B Remodel/Addition

Project Description: Upgrades/repair of the Building B, including bathroom and
kitchen remodel, and remodel of the mezzanine and/or addition.

Project Update: See Capital Projects Approval for more information.

Capital Projects Status

Consultant: EDA, Inc. Contractor: To Be Determined

Original 
Contract:

$        165,026.00 
Original 

Contract:
$                          -

Current 
Contract:

$        186,926.00 
Current 

Contract:
$                          -

% Contract 
Change:

13%
% Change 

Order

Amount Paid: $        184,748.00 Amount Paid: $                          -

% Complete: 99% % Complete:

Consultant:
Bowen, Collins & 
Associates

Contractor:
COP Construction, 
LLC

Original 
Contract:

$        165,104.00 
Original 

Contract:
$     4,117,000.00 

Current 
Contract:

$        371,754.00 
Current 

Contract:
$     4,117,000.00 

% Contract 
Change:

125%
% Change 

Order
0%

Amount Paid: $        233,544.00 Amount Paid: $                          -

% Complete: 63% % Complete: 0%



20G-1: Building B Reroof
Capital Project: Building B Remodel/Addition

Project Description: Repair of the Building B Roof. Repair will include a new PVC
roof membrane, walkway pad, roof hatch guardrail system, metal roof deck and
insulation infill, mechanical curb, and roof ladder.

Project Update: The project has been awarded and a Preconstruction Meeting was
held on July 28, 2021. Contractor is unable to secure materials until October. A
Notice to Proceed will be issued soon after Contractor is able to secure materials.

Plan for roof

Capital Projects Status
21A: Large Meter Replacements
Capital Project: Meter Vault Upgrades

Project Description: Remove existing water meters and replace with new 4-inch, 6-
inch, and 8-inch vaults at various locations in West Valley City. This is one of the
District’s annual recurring maintenance/replacement projects.

Project Update: The Notice to Proceed was issued on August 23. The contractor has
mobilized equipment to replace the vault at Coventry Manor Condominiums
located at 3575 South 3200 West. This vault replacement is expected to start mid
September and should take 2 weeks to complete.

Consultant: In House (GHID) Contractor:
Beck Construction 
& Excavation, Inc.

Original 
Contract:

-
Original 

Contract:
$517,750.00 

Current 
Contract:

-
Current 

Contract:
$517,750.00 

% Contract 
Change:

-
% Change 

Order
0%

Amount Paid: - Amount Paid: $0.00 

% Complete: - % Complete: 0%

Consultant: EDA, Inc. Contractor:
North Face 
Roofing, Inc.

Original 
Contract:

with Building B 
Project

Original 
Contract:

$           97,900.00 

Current 
Contract:

with Building B 
Project

Current 
Contract:

$           97,900.00 

% Contract 
Change:

with Building B 
Project

% Change 
Order

0%

Amount Paid:
with Building B 

Project
Amount Paid: $                          -

% Complete:
with Building B 

Project
% Complete: 0%



Capital Projects Status
21C: Kearns Interconnects along 4700 South
Capital Project: Kearns Improvement District Emergency

Interconnections

Project Description: Kearns Improvement District has requested new emergency
water interconnects along 4700 South. GHID and KID have an existing interconnect
at 6000 West and 4750 South.

Project Update: A kick-off meeting with Kearns Improvement District was held on
August 26th.

21D: Enterprise Resource Planning Software Replacement
Capital Project: Incode v10 Upgrade

Project Description: Replacement of the District’s Enterprise Resource Planning
(Financial) software to Incode v10 as Incode v9 is at the end of its useful life.

Project Update: Tyler Technologies has contacted us and indicated that they are
ready to begin the migration process.

Consultant:
Tyler Technologies, 
Inc.

Original 
Contract:

$           67,748.00 

Current 
Contract:

$           67,748.00 

% Contract 
Change:

0%

Amount Paid: $                          -

% Complete: 0%

Consultant: In House (GHID) Contractor: To Be Determined

Original 
Contract:

-
Original 

Contract:
$0.00 

Current 
Contract:

-
Current 

Contract:
$0.00 

% Contract 
Change:

-
% Change 

Order
0%

Amount Paid: - Amount Paid: $0.00 

% Complete: 100% % Complete: 0%



Capital Projects Status
21F: SCADA Modernization Project
Capital Project: SCADA Modifications/Upgrades

Project Description: Upgrades and modifications to the District’s existing
Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system. This project will
modernize the AVEVA System but adding object-based tags and creating high-
performance graphics, along with upgrading aging and obsolete hardware.

Project Update: Replacement servers for the SCADA system have been ordered.

21G: Manhole Rehabilitation Project
Capital Project: Sewer Lining and Manhole Rehabilitation

Project Description: Rehabilitation of various existing sewer manholes by raising manholes to
grade and pouring concrete collars.

Project Update: The project was sent out for bidding on July 29, 2021. A public bid opening
was held on August 11, 2021 and no bids were received. The project is currently being
reevaluated to determine if the scope and contract time should be modified.

Site Locations

Consultant: In House (GHID) Contractor: To Be Determined

Original 
Contract:

-
Original 

Contract:
$0.00 

Current 
Contract:

-
Current 

Contract:
$0.00 

% Contract 
Change:

-
% Change 

Order
0%

Amount Paid: - Amount Paid: $0.00 

% Complete: 100% % Complete: 0%

Consultant: APCO Inc.

Original 
Contract:

$        180,000.00 

Current 
Contract:

$        194,163.86 

% Contract 
Change:

8%

Amount Paid: $   7,920.0       

% Complete: 4%



21H: Well No. 16 Chlorinator
Capital Project: Chlorine Generation Equip – Well No. 16

Project Description: The budget for this project was originally allocated toward
Well No. 1. After additional review of the well it was determined that the budget
should be reallocated toward Well No. 16. The Well No. 16 chlorination
equipment has reached its lifespan and the water demand from this well is higher
than Well No. 1. The new equipment will help the District avoid future
maintenance and parts supply issues.

Project Update: The District has requested a proposal from Sunrise Engineering to
provide engineering and construction administration services for this project. It is
anticipated that design will begin in September and Construction will begin early
Spring.

Capital Projects Status
21I: Interceptor Vault Modification
Capital Project: Interceptor Improvements

Project Description: Replace the lid of the main District interceptor vault at 1488 W.
3100 S. to improve maintenance access and better match new asphalt elevations.

Project Update: In Addendum #2 for the Rushton Groundwater Treatment Plan bid
package.

Consultant:
Sunrise 
Engineering

Contractor: To Be Determined

Original 
Contract:

$                          -
Original 

Contract:
$                          -

Current 
Contract:

$                          -
Current 

Contract:
$                          -

% Contract 
Change:

0%
% Change 

Order
0%

Amount Paid: $                          - Amount Paid: $                          -

% Complete: 0% % Complete: 0%

Consultant: J-U-B Engineers Contractor: To Be Determined

Original 
Contract:

$           26,000.00 
Original 

Contract:
$                          -

Current 
Contract:

$           26,000.00 
Current 

Contract:
$                          -

% Contract 
Change:

0%
% Change 

Order
0%

Amount Paid: $                          - Amount Paid: $                          -

% Complete: 0% % Complete: 0%



Capital Projects Status
21J: GHID Headquarters Landscaping Phase 2
Capital Project: Headquarters Landscaping Phase 2 (South End)

Project Description: Phase 2 landscaping will include landscape improvements along
the south side of the GHID Headquarter property. Priority locations are the pond,
southwest side along the wall and south entrance.

Project Update: The 30% preliminary construction drawings are currently under
review.

Phase 2 
improvement 
areas are 
highlighted in 
yellow

Consultant: J-U-B Engineers Contractor: To Be Determined

Original 
Contract:

$           56,000.00 
Original 

Contract:
$                          -

Current 
Contract:

$           56,000.00 
Current 

Contract:
$                          -

% Contract 
Change:

0%
% Change 

Order
0%

Amount Paid: $                          - Amount Paid: $                          -

% Complete: 0% % Complete: 0%



Master Plan Update, Rate Study & Impact Fee Analysis Update

Project: Master Plan, Rate & Impact Fee Study & Long-Term Capital Facility Plan – Operations & Maintenance (Eng. Consulting) 

Project Description: In order to best determine rates and impact fees, it is necessary to complete an updated Master Plan (for both the Water and Wastewater systems) and a 
20-year Capital and Infrastructure Maintenance Plan. Following completion of the plans, the Consultant (or sub-consultant) will complete the Rate Study and Impact Fee 
Analysis. This project will be complete in time to set rates for 2021. 

Project Update: See presentation for update.

Consultant:
Bowen, Collins & 
Associates

Original 
Contract:

$          284,388

Current 
Contract:

$          284,388

% Contract 
Change:

0%

Amount Paid: $        129,623.50 

% Complete: 46%



Small Projects:

Water Innovation Center:

Project Description:  Modifying the old Well No. 7 pump house in Chesterfield to use 
as a pipe coupon exhibit and training area. Design and construction by District staff.

Project Update: The outer walls are complete. Interior furnishing is ongoing.

Taylorsville-Bennion Improvement District Interlocal Agreement

Project Description: Formalize the interlocal agreement with TBID regarding shared 
utility service (i.e. GHID provides water service, TBID provides wastewater service). 

Project Update: The interlocal agreement is complete.

Capital Projects Status



C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
M

ap



 

 
 

Engineering 
Department 

Update 



Engineering Report

Plan Review Updates
PROJECT NAME ADDRESS TYPE STATUS

1) SLCO Pioneer Crossing Ph 1 1280 W Cultural Center Dr Park Resubmittal Required

2) WV Dermatology (Hospital) 4133 W Pioneer Pkwy Ste 130 Commercial Final Approval

3) Wheeler Machinery “WASP” Building 4901 W 2100 S Tenant Improvement Final Approval

4) Weston Fields Sub PH1 & Ph2 (58 lots) 6840 W 4100 S Residential Subdivision Resubmittal Required

5) Maverik 2675 S 3200 W Tenant Improvement Waiting for Plans

6) Swift Drivers Facility 5175 W 2100 S Tenant Improvement Final Approval

7) TFC Kowloon Mister LLC 2055 W 3500 S Commercial Resubmittal Required

8) 4700 S UDOT Project 4700 S (4000 W - 5600 W) Other Final Approval

9) iHeart Media 2801 Decker Lake Dr Tenant Improvement Resubmittal Required

10) Foursight Capital 2783 S Leadership Ct Suite 400 Tenant Improvement Final Approval

11) Kawneer 4837 W 2400 S Unit 400 Tenant Improvement Final Approval

12) Cypress Cove (12) Townhomes 3540 W 4700 S Residential Subdivision Resubmittal Required



Engineering Report

Plan Review Updates – cont.
PROJECT NAME ADDRESS TYPE STATUS

13) NoYesNo LLC Sewer Connection 2953 S & 2965 S 3600 W Sewer Connection Waiting for Plans

14) Café Rio Craft Kitchen 2282 S President Dr Tenant Improvement Final Approval

15) Mapleleaf 2554 S 3400 W Commercial Resubmittal Required

16) Cottages at Pearce Farm (65 Lots) 6765 W 3500 S Residential Subdivision Under Review

17) CVS Omnicare SLC Cleanroon Repair 2280 Alexander St Tenant Improvement Waiting for Plans

18) Scott Machinery Venture 2187 S Technology Parkway Tenant Improvement Waiting for Plans

19) Motorola Solutions TI 4625 Lake Park Blvd Tenant Improvement Waiting for Plans



Water Quality Report

Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sep. Oct. Nov. Dec.

Chlorine 2021 0.56 0.41 0.31 0.37 0.33 0.33 0.28 0.25

Fluoride 2021 0.69 0.69 0.69 0.66 0.66 0.7 0.68 0.7

Chlorine 3-yr Avg. 0.46 0.58 0.63 0.39 0.39 0.35 0.40 0.34 0.37 0.40 0.36 0.39

Fluoride 3-yr Avg. 0.69 0.72 0.57 0.59 0.66 0.70 0.69 0.66 0.66 0.62 0.55 0.67

Chlorine Min. 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

Fluoride Min. 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6

Chlor. & Fluor. Max 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

1

Chlorine and Fluoride Residuals (mg/L)



Water Quality Report

Water Quality Complaint Locations – August

Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sep. Oct. Nov. Dec.

Water Quality Complaints 6 20 71 109 14 6 31 20

Pressure Complaints 6 6 0 8 13 12 14 6

WQ 3-YR AVG. 59 14 43 68 37 32 62 37 25 27 23 19

Pressure 3-YR AVG. 6 6 8 14 15 28 23 19 7 9 7 7

Total 3-YR AVG. 65 19 51 82 53 60 85 56 32 36 30 26

25% AWWA Benchmark 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7

75% AWWA Benchmark 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Water Quality and Pressure Complaints


	(1)September 2021 Agenda
	(2)August 2021 Minutes
	MINUTES OF THE
	GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
	BOARD MEETING
	Trustees Present:

	(3)Water and Sewer Master Plans
	(4)September JVWCD Update
	Jordan Valley Water Conservancy District Update– September 2021
	Jordan Valley Water Conservancy District Update– September 2021

	(5)September CVWRF Update
	Central Valley Water Reclamation Update– September 2021
	Central Valley Water Reclamation Update– September 2021

	(6)Legislative Update - ARPA
	(7)Memo to Board - Explanation Election Cancellation
	(8)Resolution 9-21-21
	(9)August 2021 Financial Report
	(10)August 2021 Check Report
	(11)Water Maintenance Update - September Board Report_
	Water Systems Update 
	Water Maintenance Update 
	Water Systems Maintenance 
	Water Systems Maintenance 
	Water Systems Maintenance 
	Water Systems Maintenance 
	Water Systems Maintenance 
	Water Systems Maintenance 
	Water Systems Maintenance 

	(12)Wastewater Maintenance Update - September Board Report
	Slide Number 1
	Wastewater Maintenance Update 
	Wastewater Maintenance Update 
	Wastewater Maintenance Update 
	Wastewater Maintenance Update 

	(13)Water Supply Review
	(14)Capital Projects Update
	(15)Engineering Department Update
	Our Community
	Our Operations
	Our Team



